
CRAFFU: PWYLLGOR DYSGU A 
GWASANAETHAU ADDYSG AWDURDOD 

LLEOL AR GYFER PLANT A PHOBL IFANC / 
SCRUTINY : LEARNING AND LAESCYP 

MEETING

4.00 YP DYDD LUN, 31 HYDREF 2016
4.00 PM MONDAY, 31 OCTOBER, 2016

SIAMBR Y CYNGOR / COUNCIL CHAMBER
Noder bod cyfarfod heddiw’n cael 

ei recordio.  Ni chaiff y recordiad hwn ei 
ddarlledu ar fewnrwyd yr Awdurdod gan y 

caiff ei ddefnyddio at ddibenion hyfforddi yn 
unig gan yr Adran Gwasanaethau 

Democrataidd. 

Bydd ardaloedd Seddi Cyhoeddus yng 
ngolwg y Camera ac wrth ddod i mewn i’r 

Siambr a defnyddio’r Ardal Seddi Cyhoeddus, 
bydd Aelodau’r Cyhoedd yn cydsynio â chael 
eu ffilmio ac at ddefnydd posibl o’r delweddau 

a’r recordiadau sain hynny fel yr amlinellir 
uchod.

Please note that today’s meeting will be 
recorded.   This recording will not be 

broadcast on the Authority’s internet as it will 
only be used for training purposes by the 

Democratic Services Department.

The Public Seating areas will be in view of the 
Camera and, by entering the Chamber and 

using the Public Seating Area, Members of the 
Public are consenting to being filmed and to 
the possible use of those images and sound 

recordings as outlined above.  

Cafodd yr Agenda hwn ei baratoi gan yr Adran 
Gwasanaethau Democrataidd. Dylai unrhyw 
aelod o’r cyhoedd sydd angen gwybodaeth 

gysylltu â’r adran ar (01685 725284) neu e-bostio 
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk .

Gellir dod o hyd i unrhyw ddogfennau cyfeirio, y 
cyfeirir atynt ond nad ydynt yn cael eu cyhoeddi 
fel rhan o’r agenda hwn ar wefan neu mewnrwyd 

y Cyngor, o dan Papurau Cefndir

This Agenda has been prepared by the 
Democratic Services Department. Any member of 
the public requiring information should contact the 

department on (01685) 725284 or email 
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk.

Any reference documents referred to but not 
published as part of this agenda can be found on 

the Council’s website or intranet under 
Background Papers.

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk
mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


AGENDA / AGENDA

1. Ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb / 
Apologies for absence 

2. Datgan buddiant (yn cynnwys datganiadau 
chwipio) / 
Declarations of Interest (including whipping 
declarations) 

3. Hunan Gwerthusiad o Weithio mewn Partneriaeth/ 
Self-Evaluation of Partnership Working 
Ystyried adroddiad y Prif Swyddog (Dysgu) / 
To consider report of the Chief Officer (Learning).

(1 - 6)

4. Cytundebau Lefel Gwasanaeth (CLGau) ar gyfer 
Gwasanaethau Awdurdodau Lleol i Ysgolion / 
Service Level Agreements (SLAs) for Local 
Authorities Services to Schools 
Ystyried adroddiad y Prif Swyddog (Dysgu) / 
To consider report of the Chief Officer (Learning).

(7 - 12)

5. Adroddiad Perfformiad - Cynllun Corfforaethol / 
Performance Report - Corporate Plan 
Ystyried adroddiad y Prif Swyddog (Dysgu) / 
To consider report of the Chief Officer (Learning).

(13 - 24)

6. Cyfeiriadau Craffu, Adborth a Gweithredu Dilynol / 
Scrutiny Referrals, Feedback and Follow up 
Actions 
Derbyn diweddariad oddi wrth y Cadeirydd / 
To receive an update from the Chair

7. Myfyrio ar y Cyfarfod a'i Gwerthuso / 
Reflection and Evaluation of Meeting 
Derbyn diweddariad oddi wrth y Cadeirydd / 
To receive an update from the Chair

8. Rhaglenni Gwaith Pwyllgor Craffu 2016-17 / 
Scrutiny Work Programme 2016-17 
I ystyried yr adroddiad amgaeëdig /
To consider the attached report

(25 - 42)



9. Unrhyw Fater Arall y mae'r Cadeirydd yn ei 
ystyried yn Bwysig / 
Any other business deemed urgent by the Chair 

CYFANSODDIAD
COMPOSITION: Cynghorydd / Councillor L Mytton (Cadeirydd/Chair)

Cynghorwyr / Councillors: S Williams, M Davies, 
G Lewis, K Moran, S Slater, C Tovey

Aelodau cyfetholedig / Co-optees: C Brown, M Harris, 
R Lazell, A Rees, A Roberts

ynghyd â swyddogion priodol  / 
together with appropriate officers



This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street, 
Merthyr Tydfil CF47 8AN

Main Tel: 01685 725000  www.merthyr.gov.uk

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen

Self-Evaluation of Partnership Working

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT

1.1 The local authority has a planned work programme for the Self–Evaluation Report 
(SER) in order to build up a profile of judgements, which will be used to highlight any 
areas for improvement as well as come to an overall view on standards and 
performance.

1.2 The purpose of the report is to provide the current judgement for Key Question 3.3 in 
the SER which is ’Partnership working’.

1.3 The judgement is that Partnership working is adequate.  The SER is available via 
the Background Papers link.

2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1 The content of this report be discussed and noted.

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

3.1 Self-evaluation is the essential step in a cyclical process of bringing about change 
and improvement.  The steps in the process are:
 Monitoring and evaluating improvement
 Planning for improvement
 Undertaking improvement work

Date Written 21st October 2016
Report Author Dorothy Haines
Service Area Learning
Committee Date 31st October 2016

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



3.2 The local authority’s Self-Evaluation Report (SER) for LAESCYP services is being 
reviewed and updated to ensure that the judgements and actions will lead to 
improved outcomes for all learners.  At the heart of self-evaluation are three 
questions: 
 How well are we doing? 
 How do we know? 
 How can we improve things further? 

3.3 ESTYN are currently reviewing the framework for the inspection of Local Authorities 
which will be piloted in 2017/18 and implemented in 2018/19.  The local authority has 
a planned work programme in order to build up a profile of judgements, which will be 
used to highlight any areas for improvement as well as come to an overall view on 
standards and performance.  The information collected will lead into the local 
authority’s delivery plans for improving the quality of provision.  Reports on all the 
areas of the SER will be presented to LASECYP scrutiny over the coming months.

3.4 Estyn produced ‘A self-evaluation manual for local authority education services for 
children and young people 2010’ and although the framework will be replaced this 
remains a useful document to support self-evaluation.  The extract related to 
partnership working is included in Appendix 1.

3.5 In December 2015, Estyn judged that ‘the latest self-evaluation report is an accurate 
and honest evaluation of the education service’s work.  It helps ensure a clearer 
corporate understanding of the strengths and areas for improvement in the education 
service’.  The review of the SER will build upon the judgements made in the last 
SER.

3.6 The focus of this report is Partnership Working.  The aim of working in partnership 
and collaboration is to deliver improvements in provision and improved standards 
and wellbeing that the local authority could not deliver alone.

4.0 WHERE WE WERE

4.1 In 2014/2015, Partnership working was judged adequate. 

5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW 

5.1 Partnership working is adequate because while a number of aspects are good there 
are some key areas for development. The SER highlights those partnerships that 
have had a beneficial impact for young people and those partnerships that are 
underdeveloped.   

5.2 The local authority is focusing on further improving key partnerships that will have 
the greatest impact on improving outcomes:
 Children and Young People 
 Parents and carers
 Schools including governors
 Merthyr College
 Central South Consortium
 Health for pupils with ALN
 Public Service Board

Page 2



5.3 The focus on Collaboration is also a key way of working for the Wellbeing and Future 
Generations Act.

6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE 

6.1 The LA’s ambition is to be ranked in the top 10 performing local authorities by 2017 
and is making good progress towards achieving this target.  Effective partnership 
working and collaboration can provide a clear, demonstrable and beneficial effect on 
learners.

7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT 

 Consistently apply  the principles of effective partnership working – Appendix 2
 Evaluate the impact of all partnership working 
 Collaborate with other LAs to ensure effective, efficient and economical services

8.0 CONTRIBUTION TO CORPORATE PRIORITIES

8.1 Partnership working contributes substantially to the capacity to achieve the corporate 
priority of raising standards of attainment.

DOROTHY HAINES
CHIEF OFFICER (LEARNING)

COUNCILLOR HARVEY JONES  
CABINET MEMBER FOR LEARNING

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution? 

No

Page 3



Appendix 1 
Extract from ‘A self-evaluation manual for local authority education services for 
children and young people 2010’
How do we evaluate the effectiveness of our partnership working? (CIF 3.3)

We all share the aim of working in partnership and collaboration to improve provision and 
improved standards and wellbeing. To be effective at working with others, including at local 
and regional levels, we need to: 

 be relevant to our local community and to the lives of learners; 

 engage with the broader community, including businesses, other statutory agencies 
and the voluntary sector; 

 work in a joined-up way with other agencies to improve the standards and wellbeing 
of individual learners; and 

 work collaboratively with other local authorities, where appropriate, to ensure that 
service provision improves outcomes for children and young people and offers 
maximum value-for-money. 

The test of any aspect of partnership working is whether it can have a clear, demonstrable 
and beneficial effect on learners.  We need to consider how well our local authority 
collaborates with partners to deliver coherent programmes and choices.  To do this, we 
need to have effective structures and processes, which contribute well to joint strategic 
planning, delivery and evaluation of provision.  We should consider how our staff work with 
partners to plan, manage, and quality assure provision, for example through pooling our 
funding and resources. 

We should evidence the impact of partnership and collaborative working on improving 
outcomes, particularly achievement, for learners.  A good test of the effectiveness of the 
local authority’s partnership working is how well leaders monitor and evaluate the standards 
and provision of learners.  Do we know what is going on and has action been taken when 
weaknesses have been discovered? 

How good are our strategic partnerships? (CIF 3.3.1) 

We need to consider how strategically our local authority works with its partners to improve 
learners’ standards and wellbeing.  Partners include: 

 parents/carers; 

 schools and other post-16 providers; 

 work-based learning providers; 

 the local service board; 

 the children and young people’s partnership; 

 other local authorities; 

 health bodies; 

 the community; 

 the Welsh Government; and 

 a range of multi-disciplinary agencies, and specialist and voluntary organisations. Page 4



Our local authority should be clear about its role and responsibilities within any formal 
partnerships.  The key matter is how well our local authority uses strategic partnerships to 
help to build our capacity for continuous improvement.  Partnerships will depend on good 
liaison, trust and clear communication between partners. 

Questions we should consider about strategic partnerships 

 Are the strategic objectives within our partnerships clear and appropriate?  Do all 
partners clearly understand their respective roles and responsibilities? 

 Do we play a key role in relevant and effective partnerships that benefit our learners? 

 Are we clear about our role and responsibilities within our partnerships? 

 Do we use strategic partnerships to help us build our capacity for continuous 
improvement? 

 Do we ensure that there is good liaison, trust and clear communication between our 
local authority and our partners? 

 Do we engage with the broader community, including employers, other statutory and 
specialist agencies and the voluntary sector, to benefit our learners? 

How do we evaluate the effectiveness of joint planning, resourcing and quality assurance 
across the range of partnership working? (CIF 3.3.2) 

Questions we should consider about joint planning, resourcing and quality assurance 

 Do we have a clear understanding of the costs and benefits of the partnerships and 
collaborative arrangements to which we contribute? 

 Do we have effective structures and processes which contribute well to joint working 
practices? 

 Do we know what is going on and has action been taken when weaknesses have 
been discovered? 

 How well do we monitor the impact of our partnerships? Do we ensure partnership 
working improves outcomes? 

 How well are partnerships led and managed? 

Page 5



Appendix 2 

Principles for partnership working

 Personal commitment from the partnership leaders and staff for the joint strategy

 Understand and respect differences in organisations’ culture and practice

 Need or drivers for the partnership are clear

 Clear vision and strategy

 Roles and responsibilities are clear

 Risks associated with partnership working are identified and managed

 Clear decision-making and accountability structures and processes

 Clearly defined outcomes for partnership activity

 Partners agree what success looks like and indicators for measuring progress

 Partners implement a system for managing and reporting on their performance

 Identify budgets and monitor the costs of partnership working

 Achieve efficiencies through sharing resources, including money, staff, premises and 
equipment

Page 6



Civic Centre, Castle Street, 
Merthyr Tydfil CF47 8AN

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen

SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENTS (SLAs) FOR 
LOCAL AUTHORITY SERVICES TO SCHOOLS
1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT

1.1 This report provides Scrutiny with an update on the current position of Service Level 
Agreements (SLAs) for the local authority’s services to schools. 

1.2 All SLAs have been reviewed either as part of a fundamental review or at a high 
level.

1.3 In January 2016 the Schools Forum reported that of the fifteen local authority SLAs 
evaluated in the Autumn Term 2015 two were graded Excellent, twelve were graded 
Good and one was graded Adequate.  

1.4 The LA continues to review SLAs annually in order to ensure that they are effective, 
efficient and economic, providing good value for money.

1.5 Some SLAs have had to be reconfigured and refocused either in response to review 
outcomes or in response to a number of schools opting out of the service agreement.

1.6 All SLAs are due to be evaluated by the Schools Forum in the Autumn Term 2016 
and the feedback used to inform future planning regarding SLA reviews

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1 That Scrutiny considers and accepts the content of this report.

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

3.1 The local authority provides services to schools via several SLAs. 

Date Written 13th October 2016
Report Author Anthony Lewis
Service Area LAESCYP
Committee Date 31st October 2016

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



3.1.1 SLAs provided by the Learning Department
Governing Body Support, Financial Support, School Meals, Breakfast Club, Relief 
Caretaking & Cleaning Contracting, Education Welfare Service, Peripatetic Music

3.1.2 SLAs provided by other Departments
HR, Property Services, Payroll, Payments, Accountancy, Insurance, Legal, Schools 
ICT

3.2      Local authority SLAs with schools are usually offered on a three year cycle, the 
current cycle covers financial years 2015-2018.  Financial year 2016/17 is year two 
of the three year cycle.

3.3      The local authority is required to consult on all SLAs offered to schools at least three 
months prior to the commencement date of the SLA.  The next three year cycle 
begins 1st April 2018 and therefore consultation on SLAs from this period must 
commence with the Schools Forum by 31st December 2017 latest.

4.0 WHERE WE WERE 

4.1 All SLAs were prioritised for review by schools and subject to either a fundamental or 
high level review during 2014 prior to entering into the 2015-18 cycle. 

4.2 The SLAs prioritised as either high/medium were subject to a fundamental review. 
These SLAs were; Governing Body Support, Financial Support, Education Welfare 
Service, HR, and Property Services.

4.3 The other SLAs were low priority for review and therefore high level reviews were 
undertaken. These SLAs were; School Meals, Breakfast Club, Relief Caretaking & 
Cleaning Contracting, Peripatetic Music, Payroll, Payments, Accountancy, 
Insurance, Legal, and Schools ICT. 

4.4 A number of schools opted out of the Peripatetic Music SLA (17 schools) and Relief 
Caretaking/Cleaning Contracting SLA (12 schools) either before or during 2015/16. 
As a result of this it was necessary to restructure both services via VR/VER and to 
reconfigure service delivery in order to continue to meet the needs of the schools 
buying the service whilst delivering a balanced budget. 

4.5 The Schools Forum undertook an annual evaluation process of all SLAs during 
November 2015 and each was scored according to the Estyn framework Excellent, 
Good, Adequate and Unsatisfactory. 

4.6 Overall, two SLAs were graded Excellent (Governor Support and Schools ICT), 12 
SLAs were graded Good and one SLA was graded Adequate (Education Welfare 
Service). No SLAs were graded Unsatisfactory. 

5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW 

5.1 The local authority has since undertaken further reviews of some SLAs; either as 
part of the drive for service improvement and financial efficiency e.g. Education 
Welfare Service, Breakfast Clubs, Peripatetic Music and Relief Caretaking/Cleaning 
Contracting or for contractual reasons e.g. Insurance.

Page 8



5.2 Education Welfare Service SLA

The LA originally proposed ceasing this SLA offered to schools as the service being 
provided was not having sufficient impact, not providing value for money and was not 
meeting the expected standard of service delivery.  The SLA was evaluated overall 
as Adequate with seven schools rating the service as Unsatisfactory. 

Following the consultation process with schools and Trade Unions a number of 
schools requested that the SLA continue and in addition, they sought greater 
responsibility and accountability for directing the work undertaken by the staff 
purchased under the agreement.   

Consequently, twelve schools opted to continue to buy the SLA under these new 
arrangements whilst the other sixteen schools opted out of the SLA and have 
retained the funding provided through their formula allocation in order to provide their 
own resources to target poor attendance.

Since the beginning of the academic year 2016/17 there have been requests from 
some schools that originally opted out of the service to buy back in some service 
support.  The request has been for a total of six hours from four different schools. 
As there has been scope with existing staff to extend their contracted hours the 
service has been able to meet these requests until the end of the financial year 31st 
March 2017.

These schools have been advised to decide whether or not they wish to buy back 
into the SLA from April 2017.

5.3 Breakfast Club SLA

The Schools Forum identified the Breakfast Club service as an area where efficiency 
savings can be delivered for the benefit of schools.  For 2016/17 schools across the 
county borough faced a funding gap of circa £300k, and this is expected to be an 
additional (circa) £200k for 2017/18. 

The Schools Forum has recommended that the local authority change the Breakfast 
Club SLA so that the service is open for 30 minutes as opposed to 40/50 minutes 
currently.  It is estimated that this change will save schools approximately £100k per 
annum, whilst having little impact on the current attendance at breakfast club.  In 
recommending financial efficiencies the Schools Forum are seeking to minimise any 
adverse impact of funding reductions on pupil outcomes and standards.

In order to take forward the option of delivering savings through the breakfast club 
service each governing body has been asked by the Schools Forum to engage with 
their parent/carer communities and with the Learning Department (employer of 
breakfast club staff) and Trade Unions to consider how potential changes to the 
breakfast club service from September 2017 may impact on parents/pupils and the 
breakfast club service/staff. 

This engagement process will take place between 21st November and 16th 
December and each governing body will then decide in January how they wish to 
progress with breakfast club provision from September 2017 onwards. 

Page 9



The Schools Forum will consider the position of each governing body and will then 
make a final recommendation to Cabinet regarding breakfast club provision in 
February / March 2017. 

If the breakfast club proposal is not taken forward due to a lack of support from 
schools and governing bodies, then the Schools Forum will be required to 
recommend other areas of the funding to find financial efficiencies. 

5.4 Peripatetic Music SLA
 

At the beginning of April 2016 eleven schools were buying into the Peripatetic Music 
service.  The local authority reviewed the delivery and provision of the music service 
during the spring/summer term 2016 and considered the benefits of music tuition to 
enhancing the learning experiences of young people and their educational 
outcomes.  Consequently the peripatetic music service piloted whole class tuition 
during the summer term and has marketed this to all schools, including those not 
buying into the SLA, in order to promote a greater take up of the service from 
September 2016 onwards. 

The policy of employing music tutors to replace music teachers as they have left the 
service over the last 12-18 months has resulted in the deployment of a more cost-
effective but still highly skilled and experienced staff delivering music tuition across a 
wider range of instruments.  Also due to more cost effective music tuition the service 
is now able to invest in musical instruments for pupils to use in order to encourage 
and resource greater participation for the benefit of more pupils.

The Peripatetic Music Service offer is therefore currently wider, more accessible to 
pupils, more flexible for schools and provides better value for money.

The local authority explored collaborative working with other LAs across the CSC 
footprint and beyond.  However, following these discussions it was determined that 
the Peripatetic Music Service provided by MTCBC is cost effective and a 
collaborative arrangement to deliver the music service via a commissioned service 
would be cost prohibitive.

Four schools in the SLA have requested additional music tuition and two outside of 
the SLA have requested to buy back into the SLA.  In addition, Merthyr College has 
also purchased into the SLA from 1st October. 

5.5 Relief Caretaking / Cleaning Contract SLA

At the beginning of April 2016 sixteen schools were buying into the Relief 
Caretaking/Cleaning Contracting SLA.  The services provided under the SLA have 
been reviewed to provide greater clarity regarding the roles/responsibilities between 
school and LA and to ensure that the SLA can still be delivered in a cost effective 
manner.

The SLA delivers contract management and quality assurance of the cleaning 
contract (with Bespoke Cleaning) in addition to the provision of relief caretaking 
services including supervision support. 

The cleaning contract is due for renewal April 2017 and the Learning Department is 
working with Corporate Procurement to tender the contract on behalf of schools.  As 
part of this process the LA is consulting with the Schools Forum regarding the 
proposed contract which is being tendered for the period April 17 – March 20.

Page 10



Procurement Board reviewed the proposed cleaning contract process in August and 
noted that the Procurement department costs circa £9.5k, which were being incurred 
through supporting the contract tender, were not being recovered from schools.  A 
proposal for charging the schools in the contract in order to recover these costs 
incurred was discussed and agreed with the schools forum in September.  As part of 
this agreement schools in the contract will pay circa £171 per annum over the term of 
the contract.  

All schools currently in the cleaning contract, have confirmed that they wish this 
arrangement to continue and a further two schools to date have expressed an 
interest to join the contract. 

The range of services currently packaged within the SLA and the option of 
purchasing separate elements i.e. either caretaking or cleaning or both is still being 
explored and will be consulted on with the Schools Forum prior to April 2017.

5.6 Insurance SLA 

The local authority’s insurance contract which it takes out on behalf of schools was 
renewed from April 2016 on a four year cycle with the option of a fifth year extension. 

This therefore covers the period 2016-2021.  The Insurance SLA was consulted on 
with the Schools Forum during the Autumn Term 2015 and received the full support 
of the Forum.  All schools opted to continue with the SLA during the spring term 
2016.

5.7 HR SLA  

At the beginning of April 2016 all schools were buying in to the HR SLA.  During the 
Summer Term 2016 five schools provided notice to opt out of the SLA from 
September 2016 onwards.  Each of these schools had previously graded the service 
as Adequate in the service evaluations Nov 2015, although overall the HR service 
was graded Good.

The HR Steering group (Heads and HR staff) which was set up in 2015 to ensure on-
going dialogue and communication between schools and HR regarding the SLA 
provision continues to meet regularly to discuss matters regarding the HR SLA which 
helps to identify concerns/issues, and improve service performance and customer 
satisfaction with the service.

5.8 Notice period for opting out of / removing SLA 

The Schools Forum discussed this matter in May 2016 due to the uncertainty 
regarding the necessary timescales required for either party, school or LA, to end an 
SLA.  It was noted that sufficient time was required to allow opportunity for HR 
processes to be managed and for alternative providers to be sourced where 
appropriate.  The Schools Forum members reached agreement that from April 2017 
onwards any decisions to end the SLA agreement would require a terms notice on 
either side.

Page 11



6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE 

6.1 We aim to provide essential business and operational support services to schools, 
that build capacity in schools, provide Value for Money (VfM), are cost neutral to the 
local authority and enable schools to focus on their core business of improving the 
outcomes and the well-being of pupils.

We will achieve this by
 providing services to schools that are efficient, cost effective, deliver good 

outcomes and are valued highly by schools; and
 ensuring the services are clearly defined, accurately costed, and provide quality 

considered at least ‘Good’ by schools in annual service evaluations using the 
Estyn grading. 

These services are to be cost-neutral to the local authority and considered essential 
by both schools and the local authority.  The services will be considered essential if 
they encourage and empower schools to manage well their business and operational 
processes and provide VfM in doing so.

6.2 Next steps

 Schools to engage with parents/carers, local authority and Trade Unions 
regarding Breakfast Club SLA

 LA to continue to promote the Peripatetic Music Service and EWS SLAs and 
engage with schools to deliver service improvements

 LA to consult with Schools Forum on Relief Caretaking / Cleaning Contracting 
SLA in readiness for April 2017 

 Schools Forum SLA evaluations to be undertaken for 2016-17 
 For each SLA a costing review needs to be undertaken to ensure that full cost 

recovery is achieved via the charges levied to schools.  
 Schools Forum SLA work programme to be agreed for 2017 prior to the next 3 

year cycle 2018-2021  

DOROTHY HAINES
CHIEF OFFICER LEARNING

COUNCILLOR HARVEY JONES
CABINET MEMBER FOR EDUCATION

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location

Service Level Agreements (SLAs) for 
Local Authority Services to Schools
Report to Scrutiny

25th January 2016

Service Level Agreements (SLAs) for 
Local Authority Services to Schools
Report to Scrutiny

15th February 2015

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s Constitution? No

Page 12



Civic Centre, Castle Street, 
Merthyr Tydfil CF47 8AN

Main Tel: 01685 725000  www.merthyr.gov.uk

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen

Performance Report – Corporate Plan
Priority Area 1 Raising standards of attainment

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT

1.1 In Merthyr Tydfil (2013), outcomes were unsatisfactory with most key indicators below 
the Wales average.  In addition, Estyn judged the quality of self-evaluation in the local 
authority at the time of the inspection as unsatisfactory.

1.2 In Merthyr Tydfil (2015), outcomes were adequate because the process of self-
evaluation and planning for improvement has led to significant improvements in 
outcomes across all performance indicators.

1.3 Our ambition is for outcomes, provision, leadership and management to be excellent 
by 2017.  In order to attain excellence we need to improve standards of attainment and 
wellbeing so they are comparable with the 10 highest performing authorities in Wales.

2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1 The judgements and evaluations are noted and debated

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

3.1 National Context

Date Written 19th October 2016

Report Author Ewan McWilliams

Service Performance

Committee Date 31st October 2016

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



All local authorities in Wales are required to secure continuous improvement in the 
exercise of their functions by identifying their own priorities for improvement.  This legal 
requirement is set out in the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009.

3.2 Council Vision

To strengthen Merthyr Tydfil’s position as the regional centre for the Heads of the 
Valleys, and be a place to be proud of where:

a) People learn and develop skills to fulfil their ambitions
b) People live, work, have a safe, healthy and fulfilled life
c) People visit, enjoy and return

3.3 Corporate Plan - Raising standards of attainment

The local authority improvement objectives for 2013 to 2017 include the priority area 
Raising Standards of Attainment.  This priority area seeks to prioritise effort within the 
wide range of activities to have a strategic focus on attainment to achieve the outcome:

Children and young people in Merthyr Tydfil to reach their academic potential, 
and have the necessary skills to contribute as responsible citizens to their own 
development and that of the wider community.

4.0 WHERE WE WERE

4.1 Raising Standards

4.2 In 2013 in Merthyr Tydfil, outcomes were unsatisfactory with most key indicators below 
the Wales average.  In addition, Estyn judged the quality of self-evaluation in the local 
authority at the time of the inspection as unsatisfactory.

Key Indicators
2012/13
Merthyr Tydfil

2012/13
Wales

Foundation Phase Outcome Indicator 77.8% 83.0%
Key Stage 2 Core Subject Indicator 81.2% 84.3%
Level 2 threshold (English or Welsh and maths) 38.7% 52.7%
Level 2 threshold FSM (English or Welsh and maths) 12.3% 25.8%
Level 2 threshold (vocational equivalents) 72.9% 77.8%
Average Capped Points Score 322 333
Leave education without a qualification 0.14% 0.31%
Primary pupil attendance 93.3% 93.7%
Secondary pupil attendance 93.3% 92.6%

5.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE

5.1 Raising Standards

Page 14



By 2017 we want attainment of children and young people in Merthyr Tydfil to be ranked 
within the top ten of local authorities in Wales.  To make and sustain the necessary 
improvements in standards we have set ambitious targets for the next two academic 
years. 

Key Indicators
2016/2017
Merthyr Tydfil

2017/18
Merthyr Tydfil

Foundation Phase Outcome Indicator 92.0% 93.0%
Key Stage 2 Core Subject Indicator 93.0% 93.0%
Key Stage 3 Core Subject Indicator 88.0% 90.0%
Level 2 threshold (English or Welsh and maths) 62.0% 63.0%
Level 2 threshold FSM (English or Welsh and maths) 35.0% 38.0%
Level 2 threshold (vocational equivalents) 90.0% 92.0%
Average Capped Points Score 348 NA
Leave education without a qualification 0.00% 0.00%
Primary pupil attendance 96.0% 96.5%
Secondary pupil attendance 96.0% 96.5%

6.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW

6.1 Reference to Measures 

Full details in Appendix 1.

6.2 Raising Standards

6.2.1 Teacher assessments at Foundation Phase, Key Stage 2 and Key Stage 3 have been 
verified and published, as has secondary school attendance.  Results at Key Stage 4 
are not yet available.

6.2.2 In 2016 in Merthyr Tydfil, outcomes have risen and rankings improved.  An overall 
judgement about standards has not been made yet as other factors need to be taken into account 
including standards at Key Stage 4, test scores in years 2, 6 and 9 and the performance of groups 
of learners within and between schools.  The margins between local authorities have narrowed.

Key Indicators
2015/16
Merthyr Tydfil

Rank 2015/16
Wales

Foundation Phase Outcome Indicator 89.1% 5th 87.0%
Key Stage 2 Core Subject Indicator 89.2% 10th 88.6%
Key Stage 3 Core Subject Indicator 87.0% 10th 85.9%
Secondary pupil attendance 93.1% 19th 94.16%

Page 15



7.0 HOW DID WE GET HERE

7.1 Reference to Initiatives

Specific initiatives were identified to be implemented alongside the ongoing drive for 
school improvement through Monitoring, Support, Challenge and Intervention.  Full 
details in Appendix 2.

a) Basic Skills Strategy
b) Level 2 Inclusive Strategy
c) Teaching and Leadership in Schools

7.2 Initiatives Completed

Leadership Development programme for aspiring Head Teachers.

7.3 Lessons Learnt

The local authority has in place a robust and continuous self-evaluation process for its 
education services and knows itself and its schools well.  Local authority officers are 
using self-evaluation more effectively to identify performance targets and priorities for 
improvement to achieve excellence.  The local authority approach to building capacity in 
schools and enabling schools to take responsibility and accountability for driving on 
school improvement is proving successful in raising standards. 

8.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT

8.1 Continuation of existing initiatives

a) Basic Skills Strategy 
b) Level 2 Inclusive Strategy
c) Teaching and Leadership in Schools

8.2 New initiatives

8.2.1 Following challenges from the Performance Board in November 2015, five areas for 
improvement for learning were identified:
a) Parental Engagement
b) Performance of More Able and Talented pupils
c) School Governance and Governing Bodies
d) Collaboration
e) Corporate Support Services

8.2.2 There is evidence of impact of the actions taken to improve the expected plus one 
standards at Foundation Phase, Key Stage 2 and Key Stage.  The focus has been less 
on More Able and Talented pupils and more on those pupils who are capable of 
achieving above average outcomes.  For pupils achieving at the higher levels, 
performance in MTCBC is closer to the Welsh average in all three key stages than in 
2015.

Page 16



8.2.3 For autumn 2016 the governor support services to schools has been reviewed and 
improved in order to enable governing bodies to provide strong governance. There has 
also been the development of self-evaluation and skills audit toolkits.  The training 
programme is now bespoke and provided for clusters of schools and support is being 
provided for self and peer reviews.  The next Performance Board is in January 2017 
when progress against these five areas for improvement will be evaluated.

8.2.4 It was agreed that progress against areas 1 to 4 will be monitored via the Learning and 
LAESCYP scrutiny committee and area 5 through the Governance scrutiny. 

8.2.5 In addition there is a focus on improving outcomes for pupils working at the expected 
level +1, with a new focus on improving on boy's attainment. 

9.0 THE WELLBEING DUTY (SSWB ACT AND WFG ACT)

9.1 The Social Services and Wellbeing (SSWB) Act became law in Wales on 01 May 2014, 
which changes the way we assess people's needs and the way we deliver services to 
those people, where they will have a stronger voice to decide what care and support 
they receive.

9.2 The Wellbeing of Future Generations (WFG) Act became law in Wales on 29 April 2015, 
which is about improving the social, economic, environmental and cultural wellbeing of 
Wales.

9.3 Preparation for the Wellbeing Duty

9.3.1 The local authority has launched a wellbeing strategy with schools which is being 
developed in partnership with schools.  Wellbeing of pupils in schools is crucial in 
improving outcomes and preventing issues including disengagement with learning, poor 
conduct, low attendance, exclusions, and poor social and emotional skills.  We have 
increasingly robust evidence that when children and young people have high levels of 
wellbeing they are more successful in school and in later life.  The focus nationally has 
changed.  The shift is from early intervention to prevention, from targeting those pupils 
whose wellbeing is low to a universal approach that supports all pupils.

9.3.2 Communicate the key messages of how the SSWB and WFG Act will affect staff in 
schools and in local authority learning services. 

9.3.3 Develop a shared understanding of how to adopt the five ways of working as set out in 
the WFG Act.

9.3.4 Provide greater clarity around the purpose of pupil voice and develop its effectiveness in 
order to improve the robustness of wellbeing evidence for self-evaluation.

9.3.5 Contribute to the production of the wellbeing assessment by providing robust data and 
evidence and ensuring the lessons learned from Estyn are shared.

Page 17



9.3.6 Develop a new long term strategy for Learning, which will centre on improving wellbeing 
based on the seven wellbeing goals.

DOROTHY HAINES
CHIEF OFFICER: LEARNING

COUNCILLOR HARVEY JONES
PORTFOLIO: LEARNING

Does the report contain any issues that may affect 
the Council’s Constitution? NO

EVIDENCE
Title of Document(s)
 Corporate Plan, Annual Delivery Document 2015/16
 Corporate Plan, Annual Delivery Document 2016/17
 Self-Evaluation Report(s)
 Scrutiny Report(s)

Page 18



Appendix I 
Data

TITLE The percentage of pupils who achieve the expected level in the Foundation Phase

Academic Year Performance Data Target Target LA Rank

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

MT 77.8 81.2 86.2 89.1% 92.0 93.0 5th

Wales 83.0 85.2 86.8 87.0%

(-5.2) (-4.0) (-0.6) (2.1) ()

TITLE The percentage of pupils who achieve the Core Subject Indicator at Key Stage 2

Academic Year Performance Data Target Target LA Rank

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

MT 81.2 84.2 87.4 89.2 93.0 93.0 10th

Wales 84.3 86.1 87.7 88.6

(-3.1) (-1.9) (-0.3) (0.6) ()

TITLE The percentage of pupils who achieve the level 2 threshold including English or 
Welsh and mathematics

Academic Year Performance Data Target Target LA Rank

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

MT 38.7 48.9 51.9 N/A 62.0 63.0

Wales 52.7 55.4 57.9 N/A

(-14.0) (-6.5) (-6.0) ()

TITLE The percentage of pupils eligible for free school meals who achieve the level 2 
threshold including English or Welsh and mathematics

Academic Year Performance Data Target Target LA Rank

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2016/17 2017/18

MT 12.3 22.8 31.3 35.0 38.0

Wales 25.8 27.8 31.3

(-13.5) (-5.0) (-0.0) ()

Page 19



TITLE The percentage of pupils who achieve the level 2 threshold including vocational 
equivalents

Academic Year Performance Data Target Target LA Rank

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

MT 72.9 82.0 85.4 n/a 90.0 92.0

Wales 77.8 82.3 84.1 n/a

(-4.9) (-0.3) (1.3) ()

TITLE The average capped wider points score

Academic Year Performance Data Target Target LA Rank

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

MT 322 340 344 n/a 348

Wales 333 341 344 n/a

(-11) (-1) (0) ()

TITLE The percentage of pupils who leave compulsory education without an approved 
qualification

Academic Year Performance Data Target Target LA Rank

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

MT 0.14 0.00 0.00 n/a 0.00 0.00

Wales 0.31 0.32 n/a

(-0.17) (-0.32) () ()

TITLE The percentage of overall (half day sessions) pupil attendance in primary school

Academic Year Performance Data Target Target LA Rank

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

MT 93.3 93.9 94.3 n/a 96.0 96.5

Wales 93.7 94.8 94.9 n/a

(-0.4) (-0.9) (-0.6) ()

TITLE The percentage of overall (half day sessions) pupil attendance in secondary 
school

Academic Year Performance Data Target Target LA Rank

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

MT 93.3 92.9 93.1 93.39 96.0 96.5 19th

Wales 92.6 93.6 93.8 94.16

(0.7) (-0.7) (-0.7) ()

Page 20



Appendix 2 

Projects

Projects Apr
2015

Jul
2015

Oct
2015

Jan
2016

Apr
2016

Jul
2016

Oct
2016

Jan
2017

Apr
2017

Jul
2017

Oct
2017

Jan
2018

Basic Skills Strategy 7.1
Level 2 Threshold Strategy 7.2
Leadership Development 7.3
New Initiatives

Expected Level +1 8.2

PROJECT (A) Basic Skills Strategy
PROJECT MANAGER Chief Officer: Learning

DESCRIPTION A key element of this outcome is to improve the literacy and numeracy 
skills of school pupils.  This project is about the delivery and monitoring 
of the Basic Skills Strategy, which has a principal focus on improvement 
in literacy and numeracy skills.  The project will also encompass the 
support to ensure each Basic Skills Manager has the training they need 
to achieve the aims of the project.

SOURCE Corporate Plan

EXPECTED BENEFIT(S) Improvement in the literacy and numeracy skills of school pupils

START DATE 01 April 2014

FINISH DATE 31 July 2017

PROJECT UPDATE October 2016

The impact of the Basic Skills Strategy.

 Outcomes in FP, KS2 and KS3 were above the Welsh average at 
the end of 2016. 

 Schools have demonstrated their ability to routinely set targets, 
identify and address underperformance, target interventions and 
resources in order to improve standards.  There is evidence that 
improvements have been sustained and this strategy is now led and 
managed by the schools entirely.

Page 21



PROJECT (B) Level 2 Threshold Strategy
PROJECT MANAGER Chief Officer: Learning

DESCRIPTION This project is about head teachers and senior colleagues taking 
responsibility for the progress of their own schools and working with 
others to provide system leadership with specific improvements for all 
pupils at the end of secondary school in the level 2 inclusive measures 
(i.e. English or Welsh and mathematics).

SOURCE Corporate Plan

EXPECTED BENEFIT(S) Improvements for all pupils at the end of secondary school in the level 2 
inclusive measures

START DATE 01 April 2014

FINISH DATE 31 July 2017

PROJECT UPDATE October 2016

Provisional outcomes for Key Stage 4 at the end of 2016 demonstrate 
further improvements across all the key indicators for all pupils and for 
groups of pupils. School to school collaboration is well established. 
Targeted support from the local authority is reducing and is now 
focused on ensuring all senior and middle leaders have the skills to 
drive on school improvement.

PROJECT (C) Leadership Development programme for aspiring Head Teachers
PROJECT MANAGER Chief Officer: Learning

DESCRIPTION This project comprises a suite of programmes for personal and 
leadership development for aspiring and existing Head Teachers.  This 
is a collaborative programme with Merthyr Tydfil and Rhondda Cynon 
Taf to deliver a number of workshops to train and challenge participants 
to practice and apply new ways of thinking and acting.

SOURCE Corporate Plan

EXPECTED BENEFIT(S) Improvement of leadership  in schools

START DATE 01 April 2014

FINISH DATE 31 July 2016

PROJECT UPDATE October 2016

Most of the participants in the Aspiring Leaders programmes have been 
successful in securing headships in MTCBC and in other local 
authorities.  Two headteachers are now providing support across other 
schools either as an executive headteacher or through outreach work.
The quality of leadership and management has improved across 
schools as evidenced in both improved outcomes in 2016 and through 
Estyn inspections. 

Page 22



In 2016/17 two new activities are planned alongside the programmes 
provided through the Central South Consortium (CSC):

 Places on the RCT leadership course for deputy head teachers
 Developing and using peer coaching by head teachers to improve 

the quality of Self-Evaluation Reports, School Development Plans 
and target getting

 The local authority has commissioned training and development for 
eight aspiring leaders via the Insight Aspiring Leaders training 
programme.

PROJECT (D) Improving outcomes for pupils working at the expected level +1, 
with a new focus on improving on boy's attainment.

PROJECT MANAGER Chief Officer: Learning

DESCRIPTION A key element of this outcome is to improve the literacy skills of boys 
across the authority.  This project is about training literacy leads across 
the authority to deliver literacy units of work that focus on improving the 
outcomes for boys and pupils working at the expected level +1.

SOURCE Corporate Plan

EXPECTED BENEFIT(S) Improving the outcomes for boys and pupils working at the expected 
level +1

START DATE 01 April 2016

FINISH DATE 31 July 2017

PROJECT UPDATE October 2016

The local authority has commissioned a borough wide programme for 
literacy coordinators to improve the literacy skills of boys across the 
authority.  A key element of the programme is joint training and 
developing of best practice.  The impact will be evaluated in July 2017.

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street, 
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN

                   Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk

SCRUTINY REPORT

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen

Scrutiny Committee Work Programme

1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1 To provide the Scrutiny Committee with its work programme for consideration and to 
prepare in advance for the next scrutiny committee meeting.

2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1 The Committee considers its work programme and approve, revise or amend it as 
deemed appropriate; and to consider the questions above in planning for the next 
meeting.

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND
3.1 Scrutiny committees are required to prepare and keep under review a programme for 

their future work. By reviewing and prioritising issues, members are able to ensure 
that the work programme delivers a member-led agenda. 

3.2 At each meeting the committee will agree the agenda items for their next meeting 
and in preparation may in advance wish to ask itself the following questions.

Q) Why has the item been placed on a scrutiny work programme?
a. Does this item/topic contribute to the delivery of the Council’s Corporate Plan 

and priorities?
b. Is this item/topic relating to service performance concerns?

Date Written 21st October 2016
Report Author Scrutiny Section
Service Area Legal & Governance Services
Committee Division Scrutiny 
Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt
Committee Date 31st October 2016

Page 25

Agenda Item 8



c. Is this item/topic of significant public interest?
d. Has the item/topic got budgetary implications?
e. Is this an item/topic where Scrutiny involvement will make a significant 

difference and achieve tangible outcomes?
f. Can effective Scrutiny of this issue be delivered from within available 

resources?

Q) What is the specific role of the committee?
           This will depend on the item – for example the role could be:

a. to determine if performance levels are acceptable in relation to a particular 
department

b. to determine if a specific policy is fit for purpose
c. to satisfy itself that the Authority is working well with its partners in tackling a 

major issue 
d. to gather the views of specific stakeholders as part of an on-going scrutiny 

investigation / review
e. to explore possible solutions to an issue

Q) What outcome is the committee seeking from the consideration of this 
item?

a. To comment on the proposed budget and make suggestions to cabinet 
regarding the proposed budget’s ability to deliver the priorities of the council 

b. Identification of any causes for concern and note successes.
c. To receive an overview presentation.
d. To gain an understanding of and to comment on a policy / strategy
e. To explore ideas around the setting of budgets while considering the 

pressures facing each service. This also helps provide an overview of the 
policy frame work. 

f. For the scrutiny committee to gain an overview and refresh their knowledge of 
the corporate plan / other plan / other strategy.

g. Improvement in service delivery

Q) What information does the committee need to fulfil this role / achieve 
this outcome? 
What is the Committee trying to do? You might be trying to do some or all of 
the following i.e. establish facts; gather opinions; or explore new ideas / 
solutions.

Q) Who should be invited to the meeting to provide the information?
Depending on the information you need you might want to hear from a range 
of witnesses – e.g. Cabinet members, Senior Officers, Service users, and 
External partners – e.g. Police,  Health Board etc

Q) Does the committee need to ask for written representations?
The Committee may wish to pose some questions to the Directorate / Cabinet 
member / External Partner etc prior to the meeting. This may help in instances 
when the committee is looking for something specific to be addressed. This 
will assist whoever is attending ensure that they have the information / answer 
ready for the meeting. 

Page 26



Q) Which meeting format / venue would be most appropriate for the item 
and for the witnesses that will be invited to attend?
Meetings do not have to be held in a formal committee room environment. 
You may wish to hold occasional meetings out in the community e.g. 
community centres, sports facilities etc. It depends on the subject. Some 
people find the formal setting intimidating. Site visits for example may be more 
appropriate to see first-hand what the committee is investigating / obtaining 
information on e.g. waste sites, regeneration projects etc.

3.3 Just so the scrutiny committees are aware the Council has seven key priorities as 
per the Corporate Plan. These are:- 1) Raising Standards of Attainment; 2) 
Employability;  3) Economic Development;  4) Promoting Active Lifestyles;  5) 
Promoting Independence; 6) Meeting the Needs of Vulnerable Children and 7)  A 
Sustainable Environment.

These seven Council priority areas are delivered through 4 themes and each of the 4 
Chief Officers has ownership and responsibility for one of them. The 4 themes are:-

 Raising Standards - (Chief Officer for Learning/ Cabinet member for 
Learning) 
Learning & LAESCYP Scrutiny Committee

 Improving Wellbeing - (Chief Officer for Social Services / Cabinet member 
for Social Services)
Social Services Scrutiny Committee

 Economic Growth - (Chief Officer for Community Regeneration / Cabinet 
member for Regeneration, Planning and Countryside)
Regeneration, Planning & Countryside Scrutiny Committee

 Sustainable Development - (Chief Officer for Neighbourhood Services / 
Cabinet member for Neighbourhood Services and Public Protection)
Neighbourhood Services and Public Protection Scrutiny Committee

3.4 To reflect the 4 themes as per above in a convenient form, 4 “strategies on a page” 
have been developed each reflects the Measures of Success; Desired Outcomes 
and Strategic Aims and Objectives.

3.5 Much of Scrutiny committee activity is aligned to the delivery of the Council’s 
corporate priorities and the “strategies of a page” can assist scrutiny committees in 
this role. See appendix I for the “strategies of a page”

3.6 A copy of the Committees work programme is also attached.

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution? 

No

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



Measures of Success

Raising Standards

Desired Outcomes

Strategic Aims 

All learners attain at least
the expected standard at all

stages in their education

Vision:

AIM 1: Improve the quality of
leadership including the leadership
of learning and teaching

AIM 2: Improve LA and
commissioned services

Leadership in all schools
is good or better

All members of the
education community

collaborate well in order
to improve the standards
and wellbeing of pupils

Teaching in all schools
is good or better

LA provision improves 
standards of attainment 

and the quality of
leadership and teaching 

in schools

P
age 29



Specific Measurable Outcomes - Measures of Success

Improving Wellbeing

Desired Outcomes

Strategic Aims & Objectives:

Social Services:
- Children
- Adults
- Safeguarding

We will help people in
Merthyr Tydfil to maximise their
potential, be free from poverty,

be independent and healthy
and to live in supportive and

resilient communities.
People in Merthyr Tydfil 

will be able to lead 
independent and 

fulfilled lives.
Vulnerable children in 

Merthyr Tydfil live 
healthy, safe and fulfilled 

lives.

People in Merthyr Tydfil 
are physically active and 

as a result have 
improved health.

Vision:

P
age 30



Economic	  Growth	  Plan	  
	  
	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   	  Vision	  	  	  	  

Priority	  Area	  	   The	  Business	  Base	  	   Baseline	  
	  (year)	   Target	  	   	  	   Priority	  Area	  	   The	  Labour	  Market	  	   Baseline	  

(year)	   Target	  	   	  	   Priority	  Area	  	   Skills	  	   Baseline	  
(year)	   Target	  	  

Key	  Indicator	  	   Count	  of	  birth	  of	  new	  
enterprises	  	   225	  (2013)	   300	   	  	   Key	  Indicator	  	   Economic	  Ac@vity,	  

Unitary	  Authori@es	  in	  
Wales	  	  

27833	  (2011)	   30000	   	  	   Key	  Indicator	  	   Level	  2	  Skills	  	   6682	   7000	  

Indicator	  	   VAT	  /	  PAYE	  Registered	  
Enterprise	  Births	  	   225	  (2013)	   300	   	  	   Indicator	  	   Average	  Gross	  Weekly	  

Earnings	  	   £477.60	  
(2014)	   £500	   	  	   Indicator	   Working	  Age	  PopulaLon	  

with	  level	  2	  qualificaLons	  
(2011)	  	  	  

6682	   7000	  

Indicator	  	   VAT	  /	  PAYE	  Registered	  
Enterprise	  Deaths	  	   135	  (2013)	   100	   	  	   Indicator	  	   Claimant	  Count	  Levels	  	   1,100	  (Mar	  2015)	   900	   	  	   Indicator	  	   Working	  Age	  PopulaLon	  

with	  no	  qualificaLons	  
(2011)	  

9963	   9000	  

	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	   Indicator	  	   Gross	  Disposal	  
Household	  Income	  Per	  
Head	  	  	  

£13,500	   £14000	   	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	  

	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	   Indicator	   Unemployment	  Levels	  
16	  +	  	   2000	   1600	   	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	  

	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	   Indicator	  	   Economic	  InacLvity	  
Levels	  16-‐64	  year	  olds	   7,900	   7,300	   	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	  

 

AIM 1: Develop a diverse 
and vibrant business 

base 

	  	  

AIM 2: Create a flexible, 
resilient and responsive 

labour market 	  

 
 

AIM 3:  Increase the 
quality and skills within 
the existing and future 

workforce necessary for 
effective business growth  

	  	  

 
 

AIM 4: Improve and create 
the right infrastructure to 

enable and accelerate 
business growth   

	  	  

Measurable	  Outcomes	  	  

Desired	  Outcomes	  	  

P
age 31



A Sustainable Environment

Vision
People in Merthyr Tydfil 
will live in communities 
that are sustainable, clean 
and energy efficient. 

Waste Management
Energy Management
Environmental Quality  - Cleaning / Fly Tipping / Litter
           - Air Quality
           - Noise

Flood Management
Planning & Countryside
Wildlife & Biodiversity
Parks & Open SpacesSpecific Measurable Outcomes - ‘Scores on Doors’

  - Measure of Success

Strategic Aims & Objectives -

Desired Outcomes -

Creation of more
‘Greener’ jobs

P
age 32



Learning and LAESCYP (Local Authority Education Services for Children and Young People) Scrutiny Committee 
Work Programme Descriptors 2016/17

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change)

(Work programme Version August 2016)

Committee Learning and LAESCYP
Date / Timing Overarching 

Item
Officer & 
Cabinet 
Member

 (Other) Scrutiny Focus 

Pupil 
Outcomes

Scrutiny & Challenge:- 
Education of Looked After Children

Pupil 
Outcomes

Scrutiny & Challenge:- 
Attendance and Exclusions

20th June 2016 Performance Cllr H Jones / 
EMcW / DH

Scrutiny & Challenge:-
Corporate Plan, Priority Area 1 Report.  An update on progress implementing the 
Corporate Plan.
*Appendix = Draft Service Performance Report (Learning). An update on progress 
implementing the service strategy and the associated risks, issues and challenges for 
example activities from the Performance Board challenge.

Pupil 
Outcomes

Cllr H Jones /  
DH

Scrutiny & Challenge:- 
Flying start outcomes

Provisional 
Examination 
results.

Cllr H Jones /  
DH

Scrutiny & Challenge:-  A report providing the provisional results for all key stages for 
Merthyr Tydfil Schools

12th September 2016

Commissionin
g the 

consortium

Cllr H Jones / 
EMcW / DH

Hannah 
Woodhous
e and Cllr 

David

Scrutiny & Challenge:- 
A report detailing the current effectiveness and shortcomings of the consortium in 
relation to the recent Estyn inspection Plus a review of the CSC business plans for the 
short and long term.  

31st October 2016

Leadership DH/Cllr H 
Jones

Scrutiny & Challenge:- 
SER KQ 3.3  Partnership working 
SER KQ 3.4 Resource management

P
age 33



Learning and LAESCYP (Local Authority Education Services for Children and Young People) Scrutiny Committee 
Work Programme Descriptors 2016/17

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change)

(Work programme Version August 2016)

Service Level 
Agreements 

Scrutiny & Challenge:- 
At the 25th January 2016 meeting, the committee wanted to monitor:- The 
consultation with the Unions and the feedback  as far as the lunches and breakfast 
clubs is concerned; and the educational inclusion SLA and the feedback from the 
schools forum; and the impact these have on the local authority and the schools

Performance Cllr H Jones / 
EMcW / DH

Scrutiny & Challenge:- 
Corporate Plan, Priority Area 1 Report.  An update on progress implementing the 
Corporate Plan.

Service Performance Report (Learning). An update on progress implementing the 
service strategy and the associated risks, issues and challenges for example activities 
from the Performance Board challenge.

Estyn Local 
Authority Link 

Inspector 
(LALI) Visit

DH/Cllr HJ Scrutiny & Challenge:- To receive feedback from the Chief Education Officer on the 
Estyn Local Authority Link Inspector (LALI) visit in September/Oct 2016

Schools 
Attendance At 

Scrutiny

Cllr HJ, DH, 
Head & Chair 
of Governors

Schools

Scrutiny & Challenge : 
Attendance by the headteacher and chair of governors of XX School. The meeting will 
involve a 15 minute presentation by the school focusing on the good features and the 
challenges that the school is facing. The Committee will also be asking the local 
authority officers how they identified what, if anything, was needed at the school 
and how the school responded. The Committee is also keen to understand how both 
the school and the local authority have made good progress together.

School 
organisation 

 

Scrutiny & Challenge:- 
Report on school organisation framework and surplus places and 21st Century 
Schools programme. SER KQ 2.4  Access and school places 

5th December 2016

School 
Improvement

Scrutiny & Challenge:- 
SER KQ 2.1 Support for School Improvement

23rd January 2017 Wellbeing Scrutiny & Challenge:- 
Wellbeing

P
age 34



Learning and LAESCYP (Local Authority Education Services for Children and Young People) Scrutiny Committee 
Work Programme Descriptors 2016/17

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change)

(Work programme Version August 2016)

SER KQ1 1.2 Wellbeing SER KQ 2.3  Promoting social inclusion and wellbeing
Pupils with 

ALN
Scrutiny & Challenge:- 
Provision for pupils with ALN
SER KQ2 2.2 Support for additional learning needs  

Central South 
Consortium 

Cllr H Jones / 
EMcW / DH

Hannah 
Woodhous
e and Cllr 

David

Scrutiny & Challenge:- 
A report to scrutiny on standards cross the CSC and in Merthyr. This is part of a 
programme to report to all 5 LA’s across the consortium area
Can we adjust the work programme?

Leadership Scrutiny & Challenge:- 
SER KQ 3.1 Leadership including governance

SER KQ 3.2  Improving quality

Pupil 
outcomes

Scrutiny & Challenge:- 
SER  KQ1 1:1 Standards

Self-evaluation Scrutiny & Challenge:- 
Summary SER

27th February 2017 Performance Cllr H Jones / 
EMcW / DH

Scrutiny & Challenge:-
Corporate Plan, Priority Area 1 Report.  An update on progress implementing the 
Corporate Plan.
Service Performance Report (Learning). An update on progress implementing the 
service strategy and the associated risks, issues and challenges for example activities 
from the Performance Board challenge.
*Appendix = Performance Board update.  An synopsis from the Performance Board.

17th April 2017

Schools 
Attendance At 

Scrutiny

Cllr HJ, DH, 
Head & Chair 
of Governors

Schools

Scrutiny & Challenge : 
Attendance by the headteacher and chair of governors of XX School. The meeting will 
involve a 15 minute presentation by the school focusing on the good features and the 
challenges that the school is facing. The Committee will also be asking the local 
authority officers how they identified what, if anything, was needed at the school 
and how the school responded. The Committee is also keen to understand how both 
the school and the local authority have made good progress together.

P
age 35



Learning and LAESCYP (Local Authority Education Services for Children and Young People) Scrutiny Committee 
Work Programme Descriptors 2016/17

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change)

(Work programme Version August 2016)

Possible focus for a task and finish group
 Committee needs to engage with the secondary schools and the college as the County Borough is losing pupils to RCT; and about a 

borough wide learning together initiative. This follows information received at Chair attendance at Service Challenge Sessions (Self 
Evaluation) 

 Review of what the Authority and Schools are providing in relation to ALN across the County Borough. To include the role of 
Greenfield Special school

For future consideration (some need to be taken off)

To be confirmed (in 
addition to June 
2015)

Adult, MIA, 
Community 
Learning &
Communities 
First

LB, DH, Lead 
HOS & Cllr 

BC

Wider 
LAESCYP 
Services

Information & Overview : A brief outline of key LAESCYP and Education issues 
currently delivered by Social Regeneration and an opportunity to scope out how the 
new committee will address issues.

To be confirmed

Merthyr Youth 
Forum / Cabinet

DH/LPL Wider 
LAESCYP 
Services

To meet with the Merthyr youth forum / cabinet, inviting them to give us an insight 
on how they see their role, achievements, how they perceive opportunities for the 
youth of Merthyr Tydfil etc.

To be confirmed

Nursery 
Admissions

AL Pre Scrutiny & 
Follow Up 
Issues

Scrutiny & Challenge : A report updating committee on progress towards 
reconfiguring the funding and delivery of nursery provision to meet statutory 
requirements and defining sufficiency

To be confirmed

Home To 
Schools 
Transport

AL Pre Scrutiny & 
Follow Up 
Issues

Information & Overview : A report updating committee on progress towards 
reconfiguring the funding and delivery of HTST

Central South 
Consortium
Update of 
progress in 

meeting 
ESTYN 

Recommendat
ions

DH Hannah 
Woodhous

e of CHC

Scrutiny & Challenge : 
At the 12th September 2016 meeting HW suggested that the committee may wish to 
have a regular update on the CSC’s progress in addressing the ESTYN 
recommendations following the inspection of the CSC – report dated February 2016. 
This could be in the form of a briefing note for the Committee.

P
age 36

https://www.estyn.gov.wales/sites/default/files/documents/Central%20South%20Consortium_0.pdf


Learning and LAESCYP (Local Authority Education Services for Children and Young People) Scrutiny Committee 
Work Programme Descriptors 2016/17

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change)

(Work programme Version August 2016)

To be confirmed

Learning 
Support 
Assistant 
Review

Pre Scrutiny & 
Follow Up 
Issues

Information & Overview : A report detailing the outcomes of a review of the 
appropriateness of the current service level agreements with schools in relation to 
LSAs

To be confirmed

Effectiveness of 
Governors

GW/DH Wider 
LAESCYP 
Services

Information & Overview : To have sight of the Governors survey. How effective are 
Governors in the overall school improvement.

To be confirmed

Human 
Resources 
Department 
Restructuring. 

Wider 
LAESCYP 
Services

Information & Overview : Impact of restructure on schools i.e. better service; school 
improvement

To be confirmed

School Budgets 
(Afon Taf High 
School)

School 
Budgets

Information & Overview: Meeting 7th September 2015. Afon Taf High School 
overspent against its plan in year 1 by £60k and closed the financial year-end £342k in 
deficit. Internal audit are currently reviewing the current financial position of Afon Taf 
High School and the reasons for their large financial deficit. The committee has asked 
for sight of the report when it is available.

To be confirmed

Free School 
Meals 
(attainment)

Pupil 
Outcomes

Information & Overview : Meeting 7th September 2015. Meeting with CSC. One of the 
areas for improvement  “A sharper pace and urgency to focus on the achievement of 
children claiming free school meals in particular across the region, so that they 
achieve accelerated improvement against their peers”. Need to follow up on this at a 
future meeting with the CSC and the Chief Education Officer. What is the CSC doing to 
support this LEA?

To be confirmed School Balances School 
Budgets

Information & Overview: The committee requires a report on school balances with 
reference to the likely pressures on school balances in the coming financial years.

To be confirmed

Effectiveness of 
Capita 1 system 

Pupil 
Outcomes

Information & Overview: The software system Capita One provides management 
information systems for local authorities to for example measure attendance, provide 
attainment figures (trends etc), safeguarding etc. An update on the effectiveness of 
the system is required.

To be confirmed Loss of Pupils to Pupil Information & Overview:  Committee needs to engage with the secondary schools 

P
age 37



Learning and LAESCYP (Local Authority Education Services for Children and Young People) Scrutiny Committee 
Work Programme Descriptors 2016/17

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change)

(Work programme Version August 2016)

RCT schools Outcome and the college as the County Borough is losing pupils to RCT; and about a borough 
wide learning together initiative. This follows information received at Chair 
attendance at Service Challenge Sessions (Self Evaluation)

To be confirmed Additional 
Learning Needs

Pupil 
Outcomes

Information & Overview: The committee requires an update report on what the 
Authority and Schools are providing in relation to ALN across the County Borough.

To be confirmed 
Absenteeism Pupil 

Outcomes
Information & Overview: A report providing levels of school absenteeism, to include 
comparison with like schools and the development of any procedures to raise 
attendance. Top also meet with a member of the Absenteeism Group.

To be confirmed 

Do schools 
receive Internal 
Audit Reports? 
Do they discuss 
with the 
Governing 
Bodies

Pupil 
Outcomes / 
Governance

Information & Overview: This suggestion emanated from the Audit Committee on 9th 
November (Cllr’s Clive Jones / Kate Moran). Is there general access to schools minutes 
and agenda’s 

To be confirmed 

B Squared 
Assessment 
Software and 
Capita 1 System

Pupil 
Outcomes / 
Governance

Information & Overview:  At the 30/11/2015 meeting committee informed that B 
Squared Assessment Software has not been introduced in schools as yet. This 
software package will assist with collation and production of data / information in 
relation to Provision for ALN Pupils. An update is required as to whether this software 
is now being introduced / purchased.

To be confirmed 
Greenfield 
School -t 
capacity

Pupil 
Outcomes

Information & Overview:  At the 30/11/2015 meeting committee informed 
Greenfield School is at capacity. As such are other Schools struggling with resources, 
are there more children in mainstream schools.

To be confirmed 
Invite SENCO’s 
to a Scrutiny 
meeting

Pupil 
Outcomes

Information & Overview:  Following the 30/11/2015 meeting. To get an 
understanding of the work they do and their experiences of working with Local 
Authority.

To be confirmed in 
new Work 
Programme for 
2016/17. Placed as 

Performance 
Board – 
Learning report 
25th January

Performance Report recommendation is “Scrutiny to schedule a reoccurring agenda item in their 
forward work programme to monitor the delivery of the agreed action points detailed 
in this report.”

P
age 38



Learning and LAESCYP (Local Authority Education Services for Children and Young People) Scrutiny Committee 
Work Programme Descriptors 2016/17

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change)

(Work programme Version August 2016)

standing item for 
time being.

To be confirmed in 
new Work 
Programme for 
2016/17

Service Level 
Agreements

Pupil 
Outcomes

Scrutiny and review:- Suggested by the Chair. Following the 25th January 2016 
meeting, the committee still wants to monitor consultation with the unions re lunches 
and breakfast clubs, and also the educational inclusion and the feedback from the 
schools forum and the schools themselves; and the impact for the local authority and 
the schools.

To be confirmed NEETS Wider 
LAESCYP 
Services

NEETs going to scrutiny after the Destination Survey for 2015 is published, as the 
department would then be in a position to report on Merthyr’s performance in 
comparison to the rest of Wales. 

The Department (Chris Hole) highlight the following themes to Scrutiny so that it is 
able to explore further as the coming year progresses, especially as there is a general 
awareness of the improvements seen in recent years to the overall NEETs figure  with 
a continued  decrease in young people identified as NEET which for 2015 is  1.6% as 
previously reported.   

 Key messages/themes

1. The council currently has access to the Merthyr Tydfil pre-release data for 
2015. The full report is due to be published in the spring of this year however 
no set date is currently available. When published this will enable the 
authority to benchmark its current performance against the rest of Wales. 

2. However through local analysis  of trend data for the past 3 years (2013 - 
2015) 

a.  An increasing number of young people are staying on in education, 
however significant increases have been seen in young people opting 
for school 6th forms outside of Merthyr Tydfil (excluding Greenfield)

b.  Whilst the number of young people  classified as unable to take up a 
post 16 provision is small, Mental Health issues are identified as the 
prevailing factor   (in 2015 70% of the current 10  unable to access 
provision) 

P
age 39



Learning and LAESCYP (Local Authority Education Services for Children and Young People) Scrutiny Committee 
Work Programme Descriptors 2016/17

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change)

(Work programme Version August 2016)

c. After initial progress  there has been a significant reduction in young 
people securing apprenticeships 

3. A further theme not covered by the Destination survey  but requiring 
exploration in the coming year is the retention of young people by sector 
(Work based Learning, Tertiary College etc.) once they have taken up a 
progression route after leaving school 

These suggested  themes would  give some clear priorities  for future scrutiny 
 meetings  within what is a fairly wide partnership agenda. 

To be confirmed Surplus Places Pupil 
Outcomes / 
Governance

Scrutiny and review:- Report of what impact this will have on schools in the future 
and how it will impact on funding allocation.

To be confirmed Schools Budget 
Formula / 
Schools funding 
formula

Pupil 
Outcomes / 
Governance

Scrutiny and review: - This is an ongoing issue as far as this scrutiny committee is 
concerned which has not been addressed satisfactorily to date. 

To be confirmed
(agreed at 20th June 
2016 meeting)

 Invite the LAESCYP Monitoring Group to a future meeting.
 Arrange School visits for the Committee when required to those schools 

where scrutiny can make an impact.
 Attendance training and impact of the SLA’s. What are schools  doing 

themselves? 
 Impact on SLA’s. 
 Expectations and attainment of Looked after Children.
 Impact of Capita One, e.g. now that it is imbedded is it capturing the right 

data that schools and the LEA needs, is it more effective?
 Confirmation when GCSE Results are being included on the Forward Work 

Programme. September meeting?
 Industrial Relations with the Education Department.   
 HR SLA’s to be included in the Forward Work Programme for September.
 LAC placed out of county do better than those in county. Why? Theresa is 

collating data so the Department can drill down. When data analysed it will 
come to scrutiny

P
age 40



Learning and LAESCYP (Local Authority Education Services for Children and Young People) Scrutiny Committee 
Work Programme Descriptors 2016/17

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change)

(Work programme Version August 2016)

TBC Merthyr Youth 
Forum / 
Cabinet 

DH/CH Information & Overview : 
To meet with the Merthyr youth forum / cabinet, inviting them to give us an 
insight on how they see their role, achievements, how they perceive 
opportunities for the youth of Merthyr Tydfil etc. Listening To Young People/ 
Youth Engagement and Progression

TBC Leadership 
Capacity - 
Identifying and 
developing 
Leaders / 
Leadership 
skills within 
Schools 

DH Governance in 
Schools

Information & Overview : 
At the meeting on 12th September Hannah Woodhouse from the CSC suggested that 
this may be an area that the scrutiny committee may wish to monitor i.e. ensuring 
that there is Leadership capacity in the LEA is identified and developed. What is the 
LEA doing in this area? 

P
age 41



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Hunan Gwerthusiad o Weithio mewn Partneriaeth / Self-Evaluation of Partnership Working
	4 Cytundebau Lefel Gwasanaeth (CLGau) ar gyfer Gwasanaethau Awdurdodau Lleol i Ysgolion / Service Level Agreements (SLAs) for Local Authorities Services to Schools
	5 Adroddiad Perfformiad - Cynllun Corfforaethol / Performance Report - Corporate Plan
	8 Rhaglenni Gwaith Pwyllgor Craffu 2016-17 / Scrutiny Work Programme 2016-17
	Strategies on a Page
	4 Learning__LAESCYP_descriptors


